Sunflower Gardens Homeowners Association
September 29, 2017

Dear Neighbaors,

This packet of materials is being provided to you in preparation for the Sunflower Gardens
Homeowners Association Annual Meeting, scheduled to begin promptly at 7:00 p.m., Tuesday, October
17, 2017, at Summit Elementary School. We will gather beginning at 6:30 p.m. to sign in, enjoy some
refreshments, and take time to visit with neighbors. There are a number of important issues we need to
consider that affect all members of our community. We hope you will be able to attend but, if not, we
ask that you please complete the enclosed proxy form and give it to a neighbor, a Board member, or
Jamar Property Management at least one week before the meeting, i.e., by October 10. Either way,
please indicate to Jamar at least a week in advance of the meeting if you will be attending or cannot do

S0.

Please note that the proxy form is new this year because of changes in the Association
Bylaws passed in 2016 to comply with Indiana law. So please use the enclosed form and
destroy any you may have saved from previous years.

We would also like to encourage you to contact Jamar if you would like to nominate someone
(including yourself) for the 2018 Board or Design Committee.

Agenda:
« Approval of the minutes from the 2016 annual meeting.
« Financial report: review of 2017 budget and report on where we stand as of September 30,
2017.
+ Presentation of 2018 budget and vote on approval.
» Elections for the Board of Directors and Design Committee.
» Presentation of proposed amendments to Bylaws and CCRs and vote on approval.

As you can see, we have lots of items to cover and, hopefully, fit into a 90-minute meeting. We urge
you to read the proposed amendments before the meeting and to feel free to talk to a Board member if
you have questions or comments. Again, if you cannot be present, please provide your proxy to
someone you trust to cast your votes according to your wishes. If you have questions about any aspect
of the above, please call Don Westerhaus, Board President, 515-228-6151.

Sincerely,

Your 2017 SGHOA Board

Attachments:

2017 Proxy form

¢ Minutes from the October 12, 2016 Special Meeting and Annual Meeting

« New cover pages for your Governing Documents (Bylaws and CCRs) binder

» Copy of Bylaws changes passed at the 2016 annual meeting to add to your binder

« Copy of proposed changes to Bylaws and CCRs that will be voted on at the meeting, included
for your review prior to the meeting. These have been reviewed and approved by our HOA's
attorney.



Sunflower Gardens Homeowners Association

ANNUAL MEETING NOTICE

Date of Notice: October 2, 2017

WHAT: 2018 Annual Homeowners Meeting: Vote on Board, Design Committee,
Budget, Bylaws Amendment, and CCR Amendment

WHEN: Tuesday, October 17, 2017

TIME: 7:00 PM Business Meeting

WHERE: Summit Elementary School
1450 West Countryside Lane
Bloomington, IN 47403

PROPOSED AGENDA
FOR ANNUAL MEETING

1) Introduction of Homeowners

2) Proof of Notice of Meeting

3) Confirmation of Quorum

4) Approval of October 12, 2016 Annual Meeting Minutes
5) Financial Report

6) Presentation and Vote on 2018 Budget

7) Election of 2018 Board

8) Election of Design Committee

9) Presentation and Vote on Bylaws and CCR Amendments
10) Adjournment of Meeting

All homeowners should attend either in person or by proxy. If you are unable to
attend, please complete, sign and mail the enclosed Proxy Form to:

Sunflower Gardens Homeowners Association
c/o Jamar Property Management
P.O. Box 7812, Bloomington, IN 47407

Send your Proxy Form in by Tuesday, October 10 or give your signed Proxy Form
to a neighbor to bring to the meeting on your behalf.

Registration, light refreshments, and social time begins at 6:30 pm. The business meeting will
start promptly at 7:00 pm and will adjourn no later than 9:00 pm.

Sincerely,

Sunflower Gardens Board of Directors
Jamar Property Management



S VN PEILIRL O] SU0P 20 O ipadu B s sy uo dadie) usaup o) njde sy
AT IR | 9 LOga L o ] o VRRR) TR B L R ) RGO BARS) SU) O PRADSL S0 |4 SPUN SNICING SRITE I RINOO0T SAJII) B MO §) )

o

Ao |3t 2. 51500 510

1RRpROG - SRRy Grud rucida - A7 IRPRER - BUAT \jrepecsg pur sdged . udy usliews-aud pus oA T - (e
1084 B B b peuaddng iy SLOEidoe wes) s Fuoi Tuiuey

)]y paling oyjreaps
B sy w) sl v a0 suscdey Busgingg

“IRUS) | PRI TR R S Oy U PRIMLLLING S 51507 R0y Sed won Rua il syl sr Pudeospun pur aue e
LI e

“RAAMG S b PR PUR O AQ e 5 S0URSTELY SUm0 Soy

") URSOEER BRI W) EUN S ST JUS) RIS §) WSWEORAI
.E:EE.:.D.:IEE.DE.tﬂ.:ﬁ.iﬁif.#ﬁ.;i:ﬂﬂiﬁ!ﬂ.#!:!:ﬂig
P00 QU U LOTRISE 51 YIS PRUTSE S WyBRL S0 PHI0| 0 BT IR LA R L tusd g uowsor) sofmy
e

T may Straou)

B U] PR 0091 J0) S0URansu) BUipnizu) USRI §1) 0 SOASKE [ 40) SN

LISPRARIL BN N PUE JURLIND 50 SN Y0E 0] SRALIEIOE Weiuey

|esodoug 3@Bpng s04 saj0N

0orog
AR
peornope [ERENINEN ootooees
OUSL 5 0095
T % oross
WL 5 oroots
ﬁn m o00TS

oS
ukg I_E_!z w 00'sLvs
TR Uunors oowe w or0aL'Es

=y es OUOSTE

SRS SIS U EERTS L9 5 DOSTTS
Bk e RS B RApn Pepnf
U [ X poDagUE URG Seed BULIT § DOFOOD'ES




Sunflower Gardens Homeowner's Association

BALANCE SHEET
As of August 31, 2017

TOTAL
ASSETS o
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
Checking Account 6,607.09
Savings Account 5,000.00
Total Bank Accounts £11,607.09
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 0.00
Total Accounts Receivable $0.00
Other Current Assets
Undepasited Funds 0.00
Total Other Current Assats $0.00
Total Current Assets $11,607.09
TOTAL ASSETS §$11,607.09
= — — — — —_— —= — ——— = _—————
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $0.00
Total Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Liabilities $0.00
Equity
Aetained Earnings 9.708.03
Met Income 1,898.06
Total Equity $11,607.09
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $11,607.09
— — — e T —— —— .

Cash Basis Monday, Septermber 11, 2017 06:14 AM GMT-7

4]



Sunflower Gardens Homeowner's Association

TRIAL BALANCE
As of August 31, 2017

DEBIT CREDIT
Checking Account S h 6,607.09
Savings Account 5,000.00
Accounts Receivable 0.00
Undeposited Funds 0.00
Accounts Payable 0.00
Retained Earnings 9,708.03
Dues Income 27,149.96
Late Fees 65.00
Services 336.57
Unapplied Cash Payment Income 348.00
Association Management:income Taxes Paid 285.00
Association Management:Management 1,264.00
Association Management:QuickBooks 487.76
Insurance 541.00
Legal & Other Professional Fees 477.50
Miscellansous 237.00
Repairs 1,049.71
Yard Maintenance:Lawn Application - Fertilzer 2,478.00
¥ard Maintenance:Mowing 10,200.00
Yard Maintenance:Mulching 8,185.50
TOTAL $37,260.56 $37.260.56

—_— —_ - ————————————=

Cash Basis Monday, September 11, 2017 06:15 AM GMT-T 11



Sunflower Gardens Homeowner's Association

PROFIT AND LOSS
August 2017
TOTAL
INCOME =
Dues Income 1,392.00
Services 26.57
Total Income $1.418.57
GROSS PROFIT $1.418.57
EXPENSES
Association Management
Management 158.00
QuickBooks 3847
Total Assoclation Management 196.47
Insurance -3,887.58
Legal & Other Professional Fees 100.00
Repairs 934.71
Yard Maintenance
Mowing 3.000.00
Total Yard Maintenance 4,000.00
Total Expenses $243.60
NET OPERATING INCOME $1,174.97
NET INCOME $1,174.97
—_—— —

Cash Basis Monday, September 11, 20017 06:15 AM GMT-7



Sunflower Gardens Homeowner's Association

FPROFIT AND LOSS
January - August, 2017

TOTAL
INCOME
Dues Income 27,149.96
Late Fees 65.00
Services 336.57
Unapplied Cash Payment Incame -348.00
Total Income $27.203.53
GROSS PROFIT $27,203.53
EXPENSES
Association Management
Income Taxes Paid 285.00
Management 1,264.00
QuickBooks 487.76
Total Assodiation Management 2,036.76
Insurance 641.00
Legal & Other Professional Fees 477.50
Miscellaneous 237.00
Repairs 1,049.71
Yard Maintenance
Lawn Application - Fertilzer 2,478.00
Maowing 10,200.00
Mulching 8,185.50
Total Yard Maintenance 20,863.50
Total Expenses $25,305.47
MET OPERATING INCOME £1,898.06
NET INCOME $1,898.06
eee—e————— = ———

Cash Basis Monday, September 11, 2017 06:15 AM GMT-7



Sunflower Gardens Homeowner's Association

A/R AGING SUMMARY
As of September 11, 2017

CURRENT 1-30  31-60 81-90 91 AND TOTAL

OVER
1401 Countryside Lane - Pearson 341.04 £341.04
1457 W Petal Court - Nichols 301.25 $301.25
1545 Countryside Lane - Sreedasyam 0.89 $0.89
TOTAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $642.20 $0.89 $643.18

Monday, Seplember 11, 2017 06:05 AM GMT-7

M



SIEEE USBD - L-LWD WY L9190 L1LO0Z L1 dag ‘lepuoiy

WETLL  BUMBEL  § ODEEL'LE 5 POBUDT § WITEF  LECEET § O0BLLIZ § LEWLVE S
WIWL  SOWETE  § OUEELME 5 DOBLOT § WIZO  LEEBE'E  § OUBLLZ § LEPLLL §
BEZBS  LULBELL & OOCLMEF  § IvOZIOT § %9GE OFOLFE § O0BKT § oeerE %
Rl€PL OFHIZL  § 00GL0'Z  § 0G'COR'0Z § WSOELL 0008F  § Q00T § 00000 §
%IGWEL  09GLB'L [ 4] og'sal'a oo oo
%ILS  ODOFF L o0'ore'Ll 00'00Z'0F  %%GO0'ELL  0O'0BEF 00028’ 00'000'e
RIO0E 00 L¥EL- 00'sZL'y ooasr'E oo o0
%000 00'00L- 0000t ooo 00'o 000

00’0 0o'o oo'o 0o'o

LLBRD'L o0 LL8r0) LFES LLVER

00°LE2 0o 0028z oo'a

08 Lip 0a'0 08 Lir oooaL o0t
WIL'G 00ZrE'LL- OO0'ERZZ) 00'Lbd 85 .08 ooo 8% L88'E
%OF'L0  vEZ'HER § 00'9SL'T 5 9998 § WELEE €92 $ O006EF § Lr9BL &
%EL'DE  PZLGL- 00'ge 8L L08 WHETI0L  LP0 00'8e IV EE
%000 0000 1= 0000k 000 %000 0o’ ooy
%BERS 0000 00'06E'L 00'FBZ'L wPO00L 00k 00261 o0'Esh
%O0PLL  OO'GE 00'05Z 00'GRE 00’0 000
%000 0005 o0'os oo 0ga i ]

000 00'o 000 000
%OH9E  LrBL'Y - OODIC'ME  § COCOTUT § WAL § o000 § IgBL¥') §
®OEEE LY § O0DZE'E  $ COCOTUT § 58L& o000 § lEir'L §

oo'gre- oo 00°BvE- 00’0

19°0EE 000 L5'BEE 1502 I3t

1=} ] 000 0058 0o
NEREE  FODLLF O0'0ZE'LE SBERLLT 00°Z6E'L 0o’ 00'ZEE"L
wbpng 1eBpng Jeso 1wlpng [emxy  jaBpng jeBpngiesc  jeBpng [enjay

0% oY%
(LT L10z By

UOEIDOSSY §,JaUMOBWOH SUBpJeS) Jamopung

L10Z 1snbny - Aenuer
T8d LLAd - LLOZ ‘s|em)dy ‘sA Jebpng

awoou| jey
ewou Bupeiedp Jon
sasuadig (Mol
SIUBUBIUIR U, [HIOL
Buyzimy
Bupsaow
18| |He - vojeddy waen
siamord g ubyg asuenug
URUMUIEY piey
eajeday
ENOBUB|aIERY
8234 [PUO|SE0)0Ld JaylD § [eBen
GOURINEL|
usweBruny uofEIosSY (B}
ENCOENAND
abmsod g se|iddng eaj0
wawebeuny
plegd Baxe ] BWoIU|
Bupeey jenuuy
wewebeuey uoneossy
sesuadxy
Hieid ssou
o] oL
WU JuswAeg yseo peyddeun
aBEIAING
(:EEE G ]
awoou) sang
WO




Sunflower Gardens Homeowners Association

2017 PROXY FORM
I'We, being the owner(s) of the home
located at Street Address of , hereby
authorize and appoint the Board of Directors, or to be

my/our proxy, to represent mefus at the Annual Meeting of the Sunflower Gardens Homeowners
Association to be held on October 17, 2017 at Summit Elementary School at 7:00 pm (with
registration beginning at 6:30 pm), and to vote on my/our behalf on the election of the Board
and Design Committee, passage of the 2018 budget, and Amendments to the Bylaws and
CCRs. |/we understand that only one vote per unit/address is allowed. l/we affirm under the
penalties for perjury that l/we have the authority to grant this proxy to the individual
name on this proxy form.

Date

Print Name Signature

Date

Print Name Signature

Please mail, fax, email back to:

Sunflower Gardens Homeowners Association
cfo Jamar Property Management
P.O. Box 7812
Bloomington, IN 47407

jamarproperties@yahoo.com

Phone: (812) 330-8655
Fax: (812) 330-8657

Or give this to your neighbor to bring to the Meeting!

PLEASE RSVP BY TUESDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2017.

If there is any doubt of your ability to attend the meeting, please send in
your proxy, it can be canceled by your actual presence at the meeting!
Call 330-8655 or email jamarproperties@yahoo.com
your plans for attending.




MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING
DATE: October 12, 2016
Meeting called to order at 6:45 p.m. by President Tim Callahan
Proof of Notice of Meeting given by Tonya of Jamar — notice-mailed out September 29, 2016.

Confirmation of Quorum given by Tonya of Jamar — 18 owners appeared in person, and 18 by proxy, for
a total of 36.

Brief presentation of Bylaws changes given by Tim Callahan.
Vote on Bylaws changes one through six - all in favor, passed.
Vote on Bylaws change number seven — 3 opposed, passed.

Meeting adjourned at 6:52 p.m.

MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING

DATE: October 12, 2016

Meeting called to order at 6:55 p.m. by President Tim Callahan

Brief Introduction of Home Owners

Proof of Notice of Meeting given by Tonya of Jamar — notice mailed out September 29, 2016.

Confirmation of Quorum given by Tonya of Jamar — 20 owners appeared in person, and 18 by proxy, for
a total of 38,

Presentation of October 6, 2015 Annual Meeting Minutes:

* Ruth Holman's name is spelled incorrectly and needs to be corrected.

# Status of sink hole on page 3, Item 6 —in limbo right now

# (Questions regarding Item 7 regarding Smithville Fiber status — Bill Mankins talked to them and
due to the size of the HOA, Sunflower was put in line, probably one year out.

* Susan Wier's name was spelled incorrectly and needs to be corrected.

s Leonard Kelly moved to approve last year's minutes, Bob Sherwood seconded said motion, all in
favor — approved.

Financial Report given by Tonya of Jamar:

* Announcement that Reserves Fund has been made and $10,000 was transferred from operating
to reserves in June 2016.



= Current amount in checking as of September 30™ was $2421.45.
* Review of 2015 Actuals:

1.

W

© o N e ;

More income collected due to some people not paying in 2014, Total extra collected came
to $676.55.

Insurance was less than expected, but is a pass through expense.

Under budget in Landscaping by $1100.00.

Legal fees were over budget by 5550.64, but we had a lot of legal consultation regarding the
drainage issue.

QuickBooks accounting program came in just over budget by 535.11.

Office supplies and postage was up by $25.83.

Sign Repair and Maintenance was under by $32.39.

Total operating expenses were under budget by $550.78.

Net income for the year was $1637.78.

* Review of 2016 Budget and where we currently stand as of September 30, 2016:

1.

Accounts receivable looks good, except for 1417 Petal Court, which was sold at tax sale and
did not bring in enough income to pay back the dues so the HOA will take a loss on this one.
Landscaping Maintenance is currently at 85.90% of the budget, so we should be able to stay
within budget.

Income tax filing was over budget by $25.00.

Currently at 75% for Management Fees, so this will be right on budget.

Currently over on legal fees by $162.50, but we have had continued discussions regarding
drainage issue and 1417 Petal Court issue.

Annual Meeting Supplies were over budget by 5185.45, but this is because we sent extra
packets in the mail this year in preparation of this meeting.

* Susan Wier moved to approve financials, motion seconded by Anita Westerhaus, all in favor—
approved.

Presentation of 2017 Budget given by Tonya of Jamar:

» Discussion regarding $5.00 increase in dues — this was approved at last year's annual meeting,
but was never put on the actual budget. Therefore, this year we are writing it in.

* Insurance will be bid out, but we always account for a 15% increase. This is a pass through
expense though.

# All other figures will remain the same as last year's budget.

= Projected 515 net income.

» Armelda Mayfield moved to approve 2017 Budget, motion seconded by Linda Sherwood, all in
favor — approved.

Presentation of Proposed CCR Changes:

¢ Brief background information given by Secretary, Don Westerhaus — Jamar had an attorney look
at the CCRs and two sections differ. Both sections utilize the words “maintain” and
“maintenance” without clear definitions.



s Each amendment stands alone and we will be voting on them separately.
* Change 1: Add new definition regarding maintenance

1.

2.

4,

5.

This amendment means each owner is responsible for their lot; no common areas; limit
HOA activity to small fees for property maintenance, mowing, mulching, and
beautification of grounds outside “5 foot strip” next to each residence.

Terry Fink was opposed to this change and believes everyone needs time to understand
the changes. He moved to table the discussion of all CCR changes except number 6 and
11. Carol Wise seconded said motion. Vote: 8 in favor, 28 opposed. Motion denied.
Bill Mankins voiced his concerns regarding the drainage issue. Asked whether the
concrete structure on the east side of the subdivision should be seen as a common
structure for the HOA? Wants to table discussion on all CCR changes related to drainage
(i.e. 1,2,3,5,and 7). He believes the legal route is the way to go, and doesn’t want the
HOA to pay for it but wants the HOA to “go to bat” for the owners.

Terry Fink moved to table Change 1, Susan Wier seconded said motion, 17 in favor, 21
opposed. Motion defeated.

Motion to strike the words “cleaning” and “weeding” from the first paragraph proposed
by Lynn Hufford, said motion seconded by Anita Westerhaus, 32 in favor, 5 opposed —
passed.

Leonard Kelley moved to Change CCR 1 as amended, motion seconded by Susan Wier,
29 in favor. Motion defeated, as we need 34 to pass a CCR change.

e« Change 2 and 3: failed due to Change 1 failing.
# Change 4: Revised wording of Section5.1.4

1
2.

Brought to our attention that Section 12.1 states you can’t make this change.

Don Westerhaus moved to table all further discussion of the changes until a committee
can look into this further. Ruth Holman seconded said motion. 32 in favor, 0 opposed,
6 did not vote — passed

Election of 2017 Board: Cathy Larson, Bev Maloaoley, Ryan Nichols, Susan Wier, and Don Westerhaus
were elected to serve on the Board.

Election of Design Committee: Tim Callahan, Dot Hufford, and Greg Lobdell were elected to serve on

this committee.

Drainage Committee: Bill Mankins, Ryan Nichols, Tim Callahan, Carol Wise, and Evelyn Griffith
volunteered for this committee.

CCR Committee: Don Westerhaus, Terry Fink, Bill Holdeman, and Bill Mankins volunteered for this

committee.

Neighborhood watch sign was posted.

Solicitation issue discussed — A letter was sent to the City and they say we have to post a “No
Solicitation” sign. Motion to install a no solicitation sign was made by Helen Feng, said motion seconded
by Bill Mankins, all in favor — passed.



Motion to adjourn made by Tim Callahan, seconded by Don Westerhaus, all in favor.

Meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m.

Donna Lobdell, Secretary



2017013677 HIS $25.00

@9/26/2017 02:36:17TP 3 PGS

Eric Schmitz
FOURTH AMENDMENT TO Monroe Cuunt; Recorder IN

nted

Recorded as Prese
COPY re cope o syiawsor  |INNREGHAEN

SUNFLOWER GARDENS ASSOCIATION OF CO-OWNERS. INC,

This FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF BYLAWS OF
SUNFLOWER GARDENS ASSOCIATION OF CO-OWNERS, INC. (this "Amendment") is
made as of the 9th day of March, 2017 by Sunflower Gardens Association of Co-Owners,
Inc., an Indiana nonprofit corporation (the "Association™), in accordance with the terms and
provisions of the Code of Bylaws of the Association (the "Bylaws").

WITNESS ETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 7 of the Bylaws, the Bylaws may be amended by a vote of
not less than 66 2/3 percent of the votes of the Owners (as defined in the Bylaws); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Written Consent of the Members and Board of Directors of
Sunflower Gardens Association of Co-Owners, Inc. dated October 12, 2016, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference, 66 2/3 percent of the Owners voted to amend the Bylaws as set

forth herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Association hereby amends the Bylaws as  follows:

I.  Amendment of Section 2.2. Section 2.2 of the Bylaws is hereby amended to delete the
first sentence thereof and substitute the following in lieu thereof:

"The annual meeting of the Members of the Association shall be held during
October in each calendar year."

2. Amendment of Section 2.6.4. Section 2.6.4 of the Bylaws is hereby deleted in its

entirety and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

"Section 2.6.4. Proxies. At all meetings of members, each member may vote in
person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary
before the appointed time of each meeting and shall conform to IC 32-25.5-3-10.
Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by
the member of his Lot or upon receipt of notice by the Secretary or the Board of the
death of judicially declared incompetence of a member or upon the expiration of 180
days from the date of the proxy. A form of proxy or written ballot may provide an
opportunity to specify approval or disapproval with respect to any proposal.”



3. Addition of Section 3.12. Section 3.12 is hereby added to the Bylaws as a new

Section to read as follows:

"Section 3.12. Removal of Directors. A director may be removed from office by
a majority vote at any annual or special meeting of the HOA members at which
there is a quorum. Any director so removed may be replaced at the same meeting
(just as if it were an annual meeting in cases where it is not) as provided in Section
2.6.6.4."

4, Amendment of Section 4.5.  Section 4.5 of the Bylaws is hereby deleted in its
entirety and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

"Section 4.5, Secretary. The Secretary shall be elected from among the Directors.
The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Association, and the Board shall keep
or cause to be kept a true and complete record of the proceedings of such meetings,
shall perform all other duties incident to the office of the Secretary and such other
duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board. The Secretary shall
specifically see that all notices of the Association or the Board are duly given,
mailed, or delivered, in accordance with the provisions of theses Bylaws, and that
copies of meeting minutes are provided to members upon request. The Secretary
and President shall not be the same person."

s Addition of Section 4.9. Section 4.9 is hereby added to the Bylaws as a new
Section to read as follows:

"Section 4.9. Records. Board members (and the Management Company when there
is one) are responsible for keeping copies for a minimum of two years of any
correspondence whether written or electronic regarding financial transactions of the
Association.”

6. Amendment of Section 5.6. Section 5.6 of the Bylaws is hereby deleted in its
entirety and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

"Section 5.6. Temporary Budget and Assessments,

5.6.1. If there is no quorum at the annual meeting, the Board may set an
annual budget and Regular Assessments for the next year of up to 1 10% of the amount
of the last annual budget and Regular Assessments.

5.6.2. If for any reason an annual budget and the Regular Assessments for
any year have not been determined as of Decemberl5th of any year, the annual
budget and Regular Assessments in effect during the preceding year shall continue
in effect until such time as the annual budget and Regular Assessments are
determined in accordance with the Declaration and these Bylaws."



s Addition of Article 8. Article 8 is hereby added to the Bylaws as a new Article to

read as follows:

"ARTICLE 8

Gri Resolufi

All claims arising from the Bylaws and governing documents of the HOA
among the HOA, its members and/or the HOA Board shall be resolved in
accordance with IC 32-25.5-5."

8. Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the definitions set
forth in the Bylaws, except as specifically modified herein.

9. Incorporation. This Amendment shall be incorporated into and made a part of the
Bylaws, and all provisions of the Bylaws not expressly modified or amended hereby shall remain
in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Association has caused this Amendment to be executed as
of the day and year first above written.

SUNFLOWER GARDENS ASSOCIATION OF
CO- 'DW'NERS INC., an Indiana nonprofit

STATE OF INDIANA )
)} §8:
COUNTY OF MONROE

)

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared Don
Westerhaus, by me known to be the President of Sunflower Gardens Association of Co-
Owners, Inc., an Indiana nonprofit corporation, who acknowledged the execution of the
foregoing instrument for and on behalf of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this 9* day of March, 2017.

L L
iy, Notary Puh lic

Y@ﬁﬁmwﬂhﬂ*'m Mezley -T{)(\\'.a L. Neoewin
Mﬁﬁungﬁaf R&sﬁ;nce DA\enree Printed
5 ! T |

o Al
gy o
R



Sunflower
Gardens
Homeowners
Association

Governing Documents:

Covenants, Conditions, and
Restrictions

plus

Amended Code of Bylaws

As of October 1, 2017



Covenants, Conditions, and
Restrictions

Accompanying Amendments:

1. August 24, 2004 — Original Declaration

2. May 10, 2005 — Annual Accounting

3. July 19, 2007 — Minimum Size

4. May 23, 2008 — Casualty Insurance

5. September 27, 2011 — Tapp Class B Resignation

Amended Code of Bylaws
Of Sunflower Gardens
Association of Co-Owners, Inc.

Incorporates the following Amendments:

1. May 17, 2008 by Board of Directors

2. October 2, 2012 during Special Meeting at 6:30 pm, and
3. October 2, 2012 during Annual Meeting at 7:45 pm

4. October 12, 2016 during Special Meeting at 6:30 pm



Amended Code of
Bylaws
of
Sunflower Gardens
Association of

Co-Owners, Inc.

Incorporates the following Amendments:

1. May 17, 2008 by Board of Directors

2. October 2, 2012 during Special Meeting at 6:30 pm, and
3. October 2, 2012 during Annual Meeting at 7:45 pm

4. October 12, 2016 during Special Meeting at 6:30 pm



Board-Proposed Amendments to the SGHOA Governing Documents

The ad-hoc committee charged with examining our governing documents and proposing
changes, if needed, to the Bylaws and CCRs (Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions),
submitted its written report on February 21, 2017. As part of its overall review of the proposal,
the Board would like to again thank the committee for its work. The current document offers
the Board's recommendations for amendments to our governing documents, several of which
owe a debt to the committee’s suggestions. It also includes some additional proposals, which
were influenced by feedback from HOA members at a meeting held on September 6, 2017.
These proposals have also been reviewed and approved by the HOA's attorney.

SGHOA Board-Proposed Amendments to the Governing Documents
(Except for section titles, proposed new wording is in BOLD + italics; proposed deletions are
T e

1. Change #1, Bylaws, Section 5.3, Assessments: Regular Assessments
[Change from semi-annual to quarterly installments and payments on
Regular Assessments. Replace the current wording (first item) with the
one below it in Bold + italics. An amendment passed in October 2012 had
moved from annual to semi-annual installments and payments (in
January and July of the current year). The intent is to satisfy concerns
expressed by some Owners about dues and insurance premiums that can
hit at or nearly at the same time.This amendment also specifies when the
Regular Assessment for each year becomes a lien on each lot. Note:
quarterly payments are an option, but Owners may still pay Regular
Assessments in advance, if they so prefer. This change also adds a section
to clarify Assessments for Insurance.]

Current language in Bylaws for 5.3 Regular Assessments as amended
in 2012, with previous strike-throughs removed for easier reading:

The Regular Assessment against each Lot shall be paid in semi-annual
installments in January and July of the current year. Payment is due as
stated on the semi-annual billing invoice. Any Owner may elect to pay
Regular Assessments in Advance. The Regular Assessment for each year
shall become a lien on each separate Lot as of October 1% of the year in
which the assessment is owed.

Proposed change; replace the current language above with:




Bylaws Section 5.3. Reqular Assessments. The Regular Assessment
against each Lot shall be paid in quarterly installments in January,
April, July, and October of the current year, and shall be due no
later than January 30, April 30, July 30, and October 30 of that year,
respectively. Any Owner may elect to pay Regular Assessments in
advance. If the total Regular Assessment is not paid by October 30,
a lien shall be placed on each separate Lot as of November 1 of the
year in which the assessment is owed.

Then add:

Bylaws Section 5.3.1, Assessment for Insurance. Annual insurance
assessments (covering both casualty insurance on the supporting
structures and the exterior of residences and liability insurance for
the Association) are invoiced separately from Regular Assessments
for Common Expenses. The Assessment for Insurance is due no later
than 30 days from the date on the invoice. If the insurance
assessment is not paid in full by the due date, the Board may follow
collection procedures, including liens and/or fines, as described in
Bylaws Sections 5.3 and 5.10.

Note: See also the related Bylaws, Section 5.10 Collection of Assessments,

which treats both Regular and Special Assessments and adds language about
delinquent payments, including 18% interest and attorney fees per annum
on the unpaid balance and the option of the Board of Directors to “bring suit
to recover a money judgment.”

For additional information on Insurance see CCRs, Sections 8.9 and 11.

Change #2, CCR Section 1. Add Section 1.29.

Section 1.29. Governing Documents. “Governing Documents” means
the “Amended Code of Bylaws of Sunflower Gardens Association of
Co-Owners, Inc.” and the “Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions,”
as amended. (See IC 32-25.5-2-3.)

IC 32-25.5-2-3 "Governing documents"
Sec. 3. "Governing documents" includes the following:
(1) The articles of incorporation and bylaws of a homeowners association



and all adopted amendments to the articles of incorporation and bylaws.
(2) Any applicable covenants filed with the office of the county recorder
of the applicable county recorder, whether contained in a declaration of
covenants, contained in conditions and restrictions (or similarly titled
document), or contained within a plat.

. Change #3, CCR Section 9.7, Assessments: Operating Funds

Delete “non-interest-bearing” from this section regarding approved types
of operating funds accounts and add “credit union” as an approved type
of financial institution.

9.7. Operating Funds. The Association shall be obligated to establish
an operating fund for the various expenses to be paid by the
Association pursuant to this Declaration, based upon good faith
estimates of such expenses. All amounts held by the Association
pursuant to this Section shall be maintained in a federally-insured;
nen-interest-bearing account in a commercial bank , credit union, or
savings bank doing business in Monroe County, Indiana.

. Change #4, CCR Section 12.3, General Provisions: Notice

The changes add the requirement that no additional changes to the
governing documents, including amendments from the floor, can be
considered at the meeting in which a vote on a proposal is to take place;
the proposal must be resubmitted to the membership for consideration.
Begin 12.3 with the following in Bold + italics. The rest of the section
follows and includes the inclusion of email delivery and the deletion of
personal delivery; this change reflects the discussion at the open meeting
held on September 6, 2017:

Any proposed change to the governing documents shall be provided
in writing to all Owners at least 14 days prior to the meeting at
which it is to be voted upon. In the event that a proposed change
cannot be passed unaltered at such meeting, the voting shall be
postponed to a later meeting and the notification requirements of
this process shall restart.

Any notice required to be sent to any Owner under the provisions of
this Declaration shall be deemed to have been properly sent, and
notice given, when delivered by electronic mail to the most recent e-
mail address provided by the Owner to the Association’s property



management company or mailed by pre-paid regular U.S. mail, with
postage-prepaid; addressed to the Owner at the last known post
office address of the person who appears as Owner in the records of
Monroe County Auditor’s office. Valid-retice-may-also-begiventoan
5 by Ldeli ” licabl
Resid SR 14 £ age.or-{iil-by-afixing4! .

L y -cxfel fexitd Eeiich Rasid ‘

. Change #5, CCR Section 8.8, Association: Maintenance Areas.
Add the last sentence (in bold and italics) to the end of this section:

The Association shall maintain the Signage; all yards, vegetation,
plantings, and landscaping which are outside the Five-foot Strip on all
Owners’ Lots as well as within such Five-foot Strip on Owners’ Lots if
this Declaration so requires; street lamps (if any, including paying the
utility fees and expenses); and other areas as shown on subsequent
plats, or as determined from time to time by the Association, or as
more specifically described in the Declaration. The Association’s
responsibility for the maintenance of yards, vegetation, plantings,
and landscaping as required by this Section shall not be construed
to require the Association to perform any such maintenance that
has not been funded historically by the Owners through regular
assessments in the annual budget (taking into account that the
yearly assessment can change to reflect increased costs), or through
a special assessment.

. Change #6, CCR Section 7.1.1, The Design Committee: General. This
subsection falls under 7.1, Powers of the Design Committee. Add the indicated
information below:

In order to preserve the natural quality and aesthetic appearance of
the existing geographic area, no Residence, Building or exterior
improvement of any type or kind shall be repainted, constructed, or
placed on any Lot without the prior written approval of the Design
Committee, although Design Committee approval shall not be
required if a repair of exterior damage restores the exterior of a
residence to its original condition and/or appearance. Required
approvals shall be obtained only after written application has been



made to the Committee by the Owner of the Lot requesting
authorization. Such written application shall be in the manner and
form prescribed from time to time by the Committee, and shall be
accompanied by two complete sets of plans and specifications for
any such proposed construction or improvement.”

[Note: the rest of this section continues on at length with no additional changes.]

7. Change #7, CCR Section 7.5. Membership (of the Design Committee):

Replace the current Section 7.5 with the following; changes include specifying
one-year terms, changing the need for 2/3 majorities for election either initially
or ‘from time to time,’” and eliminating the requirement that in the event of a
vacancy, the remaining committee members may only temporarily appoint a
new member until the 2/3 percentage of all Owners appoints a replacement:

7.5 Membership. The Design Committee shall consist of three resident
Owners, elected by written ballot at each annual meeting for one-year
terms. Nomination forms may be submitted to the Secretary of the
Association (or the Property Management Company, if applicable) at
least one week prior to the date of the annual meeting. Nominations
may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. Those Owners
nominated from the floor shall also be considered for the vote if they
are in attendance and indicate a willingness to serve. The three
persons receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected. In the
event of a vacancy on the Committee, the remaining Committee
members may appoint an eligible Owner to the Committee to serve
until the next annual meeting. The Design Committee shall select its

own chairperson.




